ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

April 8, 2010
8:08 a. m

Chair
Vice Chair

Bob Lynn,
Paul Seat on,
Carl Gatto
Crai g Johnson
Peggy W/ son
Max G uenberg
Pet e Petersen

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 244
"An Act providing that, during the governor's term of office,
the duty station of the governor is Juneau, and prohibiting
paynent of certain travel allowances for use of the governor's
per sonal residence."

- MOVED HCS SB 244( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 244
SHORT TI TLE: GOVERNOR S DUTY STATI OV TRAVEL ALLOWMANCES

SPONSOR(s) : SENATOR(s) STEDVAN

01/ 29/ 10 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 29/ 10 (S STA, JUD

02/ 11/ 10 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 11/ 10 (S Moved SB 244 Qut of Committee

02/ 11/ 10 (S M NUTE( STA)

02/ 12/ 10 (S STA RPT 4DP

02/ 12/ 10 (S DP: MENARD, PASKVAN, MEYER, FRENCH
02/ 24/ 10 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 24/ 10 (S) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 01/ 10 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 01/ 10 (S Heard & Held

03/ 01/ 10 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 8, 2010



03/ 15/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 15/ 10 (S) Moved SB 244 Qut of Committee
03/ 15/ 10 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 16/ 10 (S) JUD RPT 3DP 2NR

03/ 16/ 10 (S DP: FRENCH, COGHILL, EGAN

03/ 16/ 10 (S) NR: W ELECHOWSKI , MOGUI RE

03/ 18/ 10 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 18/ 10 (S VERSI ON:  SB 244

03/ 19/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 19/ 10 (H STA, JUD

04/ 01/ 10 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 01/ 10 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 06/ 10 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 06/ 10 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 08/ 10 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

DARW N PETERSQON, St aff

Senat or Bert Stednan

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SB 244 on behalf of Senator
St edman, sponsor.

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Comm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on SB
244.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:08: 00 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
neeting to order at 8:08 a.m Representatives Seaton, Gatto,
Pet er sen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representatives Johnson, WIson, and Guenberg arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

SB 244- GOVERNOR S DUTY STATI OV TRAVEL ALLOWMANCES

8:08: 10 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 8, 2010



CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was SENATE
BILL NO 244, "An Act providing that, during the governor's term
of office, the duty station of the governor is Juneau, and
prohi biting paynent of certain travel allowances for use of the
governor's personal residence.”

The conmm ttee took an at-ease from8:08:25 AMto 8:13:39 AM

8:14: 13 AM

DARWN PETERSON, Staff, Senator Bert Stedman, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented SB 244 on behalf of Senator Stednan,
sponsor. He stated that the proposed bill would codify in
statute the adm nistrative requirenent that Juneau is officially
consi dered the governor's duty station. Currently there are no
statutory provisions requiring the governor to reside in the
capital city and occupy the governor's mansion during his/her
term of office. He related that SB 244 would not prohibit the
governor from maintaining a personal residence anywhere else in
Al aska; however, the governor wuld be subject to state
personnel laws as they apply to the calculation and paynent of
travel all owances. | f passed, the legislation would not affect
the current governor, but would affect all future governors.

8:15:38 AM

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Adm nistration, in response to Chair Lynn, said
the proposed |egislation would not change the pay allowance of
t he governor. He described the bill as "a formal statenment of
duty station,” noting that "current practice is consistent with
how the bill 1is constructed.” He related that every state
enpl oyee in the executive branch has a formal duty station, with
the exception of the governor. The proposed bill would treat
the position of governor like all other positions in the
executive branch. 1In response to a question from Chair Lynn, he

said he does not know why the governor has been excluded thus
far.

8:18: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO ascertained that M. Brooks, whose duty
station is Juneau, lives in Juneau. He pointed out that M.
Brooks could, if he wanted, live in Anchorage and fly to Juneau

every day for work. He asked M. Brooks if he distinguishes as
"fairly special" a situation in which someone owns a house in a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 8, 2010



comunity other than Juneau and is elected and given a house in
Juneau.

MR. BROOKS responded, "I would agree, that's fairly unique, as
it relates to other enployees in the executive branch.”

CHAIR LYNN stated his assunption that the governor has use of
t he governor's mansion rent-free.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO and MR. BROCKS confirned that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the governor is elected for a finite
anount of tinme - there is a term limt of eight years. He
asked, "In your opinion, is this distinction for the governor so
different from other enployees that we should not declare the
governor's duty station?"

8:20:11 AM

MR. BROCKS offered his perspective that the proposed | egislation
woul d provide sone guidance and clarity. He said it is not
uncommon for an individual to take a job in one part of the
state and have a hone in another part. He relayed that there is
a state adm nistrative manual used by all state agencies, which
outlines rules regarding travel. The state nmakes a distinction

bet ween | odgi ng expense and neal allowance. Currently the state
gives $60 a day for neal allowance, while |odging expense is

only given as a reinbursenent for expenditure. M. Brooks
offered an exanple in which a state enployee has a hone in
Anchorage and a duty station in Juneau. |If that enployee flies

to Anchorage on state business and stays in his/her honme while
in Anchorage, he/she would not be given |odging allowance
rei nbursenent, because no noney would have been spent by that
enpl oyee on | odgi ng. M. Brooks stated that the proposed bill
is consistent with current policy. He said, "It nakes sone
clarification on a single position where it doesn't exist, and
it's how we treat 1,500 other executive branch enpl oyees. "

8:22:52 AM

MR. BROOKS, in response to Chair Lynn, said there is publicized
debate about how a forner governor was reinbursed for neal

al | owance. In response to a followup question, he confirned
that currently Juneau is not specified in statute as the
governor's duty station. He said if a governor had a honme in

Anchorage, stayed at that hone during a state-related business
trip in Anchorage, and bought groceries and cooked neal s at that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 8, 2010



honme, he/she could be reinbursed at the $60-a-day anount if
he/ she submitted a claim Li kewi se, if the governor ate at a
restaurant while in Anchorage, he/she could be reinbursed. He
indicated that that reinbursenent would not be available for
eating out at a restaurant in the duty station.

8:26: 37 AM

MR. BROCKS, in response to Representative Gatto, confirnmed that
under SB 244, a governor would still be allowed to travel for
state business from Juneau to a town in which he/she owned a
home, stay in that hone during the business trip, and subnmt a
claimto be reinbursed $60 a day for food.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded that it is not clear what change
woul d be effected by SB 244.

8:27:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if there is an option of receiving
per diemor reinbursenment in the executive branch

MR. BROOKS answered there is not.
8:28:12 AM

MR. PETERSON, in response to Chair Lynn, clarified that the
intent of the proposed legislation is not to change policy, but
rather it is sinply a statenent of policy that Juneau, a capita
city, is the duty station of the governor. That statenment woul d
be codified in statute, he said. In response to a followup
guestion from Chair Lynn, he explained that under SB 244, since
Juneau would be named in statute as the governor's duty station
it may beconme an issue if a governor did not live in Juneau.

8:29:34 AM

MR. PETERSON, in response to Representative Gatto, read the
first sentence of the definition of duty station, which is in
the aforenentioned Alaska Administrative Mnual [ excerpts
included in the conmttee packet], as follows:

The duty station of a traveler includes the city,
town, or village within 50 mles of where the traveler
spends the major portion of their working tine, or the
place to which the traveler returns to duty on
conpl etion of special assignnments.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 8, 2010



MR. PETERSON said the bill would not prevent the governor from
traveling. He stated, "It's just when the governor returns hone
and the governor's living in Alaska, the capital ... city and
t he governor's mansion is where the governor should reside."

CHAIR LYNN noted that M. Peterson said "should reside."

MR. PETERSON sai d yes. In response to Representative Gatto, he
said the bill specifies Juneau as the capital city; therefore
if SB 244 was passed into law, statute would have to be anended
if the capital city ever was rel ocat ed.

CHAIR LYNN suggested the |anguage be changed now to read
“capital" rather than "Juneau"

8:32:49 AM

MR. BROCKS, in response to Representative Seaton, explained that
w thout SB 244, a governor from Kotzebue, for exanple, could
deci de that Kotzebue is his/her duty station, which would nean
every time that governor cane to Juneau, he/she could stay in
the governor's mansion and eat the neals provided there and
submit a claimfor those neals.

8:35:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN recol |l ected that in the past, there has
been controversy regarding the travel of the governor's
chi | dren. He noted that that issue is not addressed in SB 244,
and he questioned why.

MR. PETERSON responded that the sponsor intentionally did not
address that issue, because it is a much nore conplicated issue
that woul d probably require a separate piece of |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN offered a hypothetical situation in
which the governor's children do not conme to Juneau with the
governor, in order to remain in their school and honetown
| ocated in other than Juneau. He asked if under SB 244, wth
the governor's duty station being Juneau, the governor's trave
back and forth from Juneau to see his/her children would be paid
by the state.

8:37:43 AM

MR. BROOKS responded that he cannot inmagine that the governor's
trips to see his/her children would not also include business,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 8, 2010



because the position of governor is held 365 days of the year;
therefore, he speculated that those trips nay be paid for by the
st at e.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that legislators also represent the state
365 days of the year.

MR. BROOKS responded that is correct.
8:38: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if anyone has raised the issue of
separation of power in relation to the proposed |egislation.

MR. PETERSON answered yes. He said the issue was raised with
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services. He relayed that not
only is it within the purview of the Al aska State Legislature to
declare the governor's duty station, the legislature is the only
body in the state that can do so.

8:40:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that if the state regularly
provi des the governor with nmeals "here,” and the governor does
not eat those neals, then it should be fair that the state pay
an equi val ent cost "wherever the governor eats the neals."

MR. BROOKS responded that that would occur under SB 244. I n
response to a followup question from Representative G uenberg,
he offered his understanding that currently a governor who, for
exanple, lives in Wasilla and drives back and forth from Wsilla
to Anchorage would not get reinbursed for that travel expense

and the proposed | egislation "doesn’'t change that at all."

8:42:13 AM
REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked for confirmation that currently
the governor "would be entitled to the neal allowance,” so [SB

244] woul d not change that either.

MR. BROOKS replied, "Currently a governor would be eligible for

t hat nmeal al | onance. " He clarified that the proposed
| egi sl ation does not change current practice, but "nakes that
distinction between ... lodging costs versus neal allowance."

In response to a followup question, he specified that SB 244
woul d put "duty station into |aw "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 8, 2010



8:42: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that under SB
244, when a governor who has residence in another part of the
state conmes to Juneau and is given neals, he/she would not be
allowed to claim neal allowance. He clarified that w thout the
proposed |egislation, a governor could claim a neal allowance
when in Juneau if he/she declared sonepl ace outside of Juneau as
hi s/ her duty station. He offered his understanding that SB 244
would correct that, and he said he sees that as the proposed
bill"'s biggest inpact.

MR. BROOKS responded, "What you just described is accurate.”
8:44:28 AM

CHAIR LYNN recollected that a former governor had released the
cook staff at the governor's nansion. He asked who woul d have
paid for the food after that happened.

MR. BROOKS inparted, "The state would have still purchased the
food, just would not have been paying to have it prepared.”

CHAIR LYNN asked for clarification regarding how that situation
woul d have been changed under SB 244. He asked, "Is it the cook
that's paid for or is it the food that's consuned that's paid
for?"

MR. BROOKS offered his understanding that it is an option for
the governor to have staff that will purchase groceries, prepare
nmeal s, and clean up afterward. He then offered his
understanding that the aforenentioned previous governor chose to
have the state reinburse the purchase of food and |eave the
preparation to the governor's famly.

CHAI R LYNN concl uded, "But this bill wouldn't change any of that
at all."

MR. BROOKS confirnmed that is correct.

8:46: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN pointed out that there is an office in
Anchorage that is frequently used by the governor, and he asked

if the bill would nake Juneau the duty station 365 days of the
year, even if the legislature was not currently in session.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 8, 2010



MR. BROOKS replied, "It would be the duty station for purposes

of calculating travel - not necessarily where they worked or
spent time - Dbecause obviously the governor is going to spend
time throughout the state and ... outside of the state, as
well.” In response to Chair Lynn, he stated that SB 244 would

not force the governor to live in Juneau.

8:47.43 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON offered her understanding that the
proposed | egislation would make accounting easier. Furthernore,
the bill would not allow a governor to get paid for the mles

he/ she travel s between hone and worKk.
8:49: 00 AM

MR. BROOKS said Representative WIson is correct regarding
accounting. However, he said the issue of mleage is really not
addressed in the proposed |egislation.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON directed attention page 2, line 8,
Section 2(b)(2), which read as foll ows:

(2) the governor is not entitled to, and may
not claim as a travel allowance, a |odging allowance
when staying in the governor's personal residence
while in travel status away from the governor's
desi gnated duty station.

MR. BROCKS said the key [term] in that bill |anguage is "l odging
al | owance".
CHAIR LYNN asked, "Was that ever clainmed before - [|odging

al | owance?"

MR. BROOKS offered his understanding that the answer is no, but
said the clainms are handled by the governor's administrative
of fice. He said, "To get a lodging allowance, you have to
submt an invoice."

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said the language in the bill is not
cl ear. She suggested that a comma should be added after
"l odgi ng all owance”". She explained that that would clarify that

"we're tal king about the |odging allowance."

MR. PETERSON said that would be a fine amendnent that would
clarify the | anguage.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 8, 2010



8:51: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if, in the event a governor from
Juneau was el ected and wanted to live in his/her own hone rather
than in the governor's mansion, the state would provide food and
a cook.

8:51: 52 AM

MR. BROOKS responded that the bill really does not address the
provision of a cook or other food preparers. He said the
governor in that hypothetical situation certainly would not be
gi ven a | odgi ng al | onance.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "What if they rented a house and had
rental receipts and stayed in their house? Wuld they get a
| odgi ng al | owance?"

MR. BROOKS said if that was in Juneau the governor would not get
a | odgi ng all onance, because under SB 244, the governor would be
in his/her duty station. In response to Chair Lynn, he offered
hi s understanding that the sane answer would be true currently,
wi t hout SB 244.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "What if they went to the CGol dbelt -
now t hey have a receipt. Can they subnmt that?"

MR. BROOKS replied, "If duty station is defined in Juneau that
woul d not be reinbursed.”

8:53:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his wunderstanding that the
proposed | egislation would nake it clear that when a governor is
staying in his/her personal residence, anywhere in the state,
he/ she woul d not be given a | odging allowance. Furthernore, if
the governor is in Juneau, he/she would not get a neal allowance
either, "because you had chosen to buy your neals outside and
not have them provided by the state.”

MR. BROOKS said he believes that is accurate.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG further stated his understanding that a

governor with a residence in Anchorage or Wasilla, for exanple,
who was working in those |ocations, could get a neal allowance.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- April 8, 2010



MR. BROCKS responded that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that seens fair. He said forner
Governor Sarah Palin did not receive a mleage allowance,
because the state provided a car for her and the gasoline. He

opined that that is fair, as well. He said there are governors
in other states who have chosen not to live in the governor's
residence in order to save noney for the state. He said a

governor mght have to go to another part of the state to
conduct state business when the legislature is not in session,
and it is reasonable for the governor to stay in his/her own
resi dence.
8:56:31 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:56: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
as foll ows:

Page 2, Iline 9, between "lodging allowance" and
"when":
| nsert ","

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON explained that Conceptual Amendnent 1
woul d provide clarification.

CHAIR LYNN asked if there was any objection. There being no
obj ection, Conceptual Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

8:57.:14 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to adopt Anmendnment 2, as foll ows:
Page 1, line 2:
Del ete "Juneau"

Insert "the state capital™

CHAIR LYNN asked if there was any objection. There being none,
Amendrent 2 was adopt ed.

8:57:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to adopt Amendnment 3, as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 8, 2010



Page 2, line 6:
Del ete "Juneau"
I nsert "the state capital”

REPRESENTATI VES P. W LSON and SEATON obj ect ed.

8:58:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Brooks if duty stations are
assigned by particular city. He asked if there 1is any
difference in the way the bill would be inplenented if it read

"Juneau" or "the capital city".

MR. BROCKS expl ained that currently each enployee's duty station
is designated as a specific city. He continued as foll ows:

But | think there's an understanding ..., from hearing
the discussion here, that if the capital is currently
Juneau, then that's the duty station - the actual city
we would use, and ... if it ever changed, then we
woul d adjust it accordingly.
8:59: 08 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved hi s objection.
8:59:19 AM
MR. PETERSON said he does not think the bill sponsor would have
a problem with Anendnment 3, because changing "Juneau" to "the
capital city” would still acconplish his intent.
8:59:38 AM
REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON renoved her objection

CHAIR LYNN announced that there being no further objection,
Amendnent 3 was adopt ed.

9:01:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report SB 244, as anmended, out of
conmmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

9:01: 28 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 8, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO obj ect ed. He expressed his concern that
the proposed legislation would have little real effect, but
woul d add constraints; therefore, he sees no benefit in passing
the bill.

9:01: 54 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Johnson, G uenberg,

Pet ersen, Seaton, WIson, and Lynn voted in favor of the notion
to report SB 244, as anended, out of commttee with individua

recommendat i ons and t he accomnpanyi ng fiscal not es.

Representative Gatto voted against it. Therefore, HCS SB
244(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee by a vote of 6-1.

9:03: 28 AM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 9:03
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- April 8, 2010



